
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Date Tuesday 14 May 2019
Time 10.00 am
Venue Committee Room 2 - County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

1. Apologies for Absence  
2. Substitute Members  
3. Declarations of Interest (if any)  
4. Minutes of the Meetings held on 6 February 2019 and 19 March 2019  

(Pages 3 - 18)
5. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 

discussion of exempt information  

Part B

Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the 
public (consideration of exempt or confidential information)

6. Consideration of the Ongoing Suitability to Continue to Hold a Personal 
Licence  (Pages 19 - 44)

Part A

7. Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - 88 Front Street, 
Chester-le-Street  (Pages 45 - 114)

8. Application for the Review of a Premises Licence - Khan's Foodstore, 
25-27 West Road, Annfield Plain, Stanley  (Pages 115 - 182)

9. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
3 May 2019



To: The Members of the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Councillors D Brown, P Crathorne, C Hampson and D Hicks

Contact: Jill Errington Tel: 03000 269703



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Special Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Council Chamber - 
County Hall, Durham on Wednesday 6 February 2019 at 1.30 pm

Present:

Members of the Committee:
Councillors G Darkes, C Hampson and J Maitland

Also Present:
S Buston (Council’s Solicitor)
Y Raine (Senior Licensing Officer)
S Mohammed (Applicant)
T Robson (TJR Licensing – Agent for Applicant)
Councillor Dixon (Sacriston Parish Council)
Councillor Brown (Durham City Parish Council)
Councillor Cornwell (Durham City Parish Council)
Councillor Ashby (Durham City Parish Council)

Councillor J Maitland (in the Chair)

1 Apologies for Absence 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor C Carr.

2 Substitute Members 

There were no substitute Members.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

4 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - Sacriston Stores, 8A Front 
Street, Sacriston, Durham 

The Committee considered the report of the Senior Licensing Officer regarding an 
application for the grant of a Premises Licence in respect of Sacriston Stores, 8A 
Front Street, Sacriston (for copy of report, see file of minutes).

A copy of the location plan and application form had been circulated.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



The Senior Licensing Officer advised Members that the Applicant’s agent had 
contacted licensing with an amendment to the application to remove the delivery 
service making the application solely for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the 
premises from 08:00 hrs until 23:00 hrs Monday to Sunday.

The Applicant’s agent had also provided additional information, which had been 
circulated to all parties prior to the meeting.

Four representations had been received during the consultation period, one from 
the Responsible Authority Durham Constabulary and three from ‘Other Persons’ 
namely Councillor Wilson, Sacriston Parish Council and City of Durham Parish 
Council.

Following the removal of the 24-hour delivery service, Durham Constabulary had 
formally given notice to withdraw their objection. Durham Constabulary had 
previously mediated with the applicant additional conditions, which were agreed 
and added to the application by the applicant, detail of which had been circulated 
with the papers.

Responses were received from Durham Local Safeguarding Children Board, 
Environmental Health, Public Health, Planning and the Fire Authority all confirming 
that they had no comments to make in relation to the application.

There were no question of the Senior Licensing Officer.

The Council’s Solicitor advised Members that Councillor Wilson ‘Other Persons’ 
who had made representation had confirmed that he would not be in attendance so 
his written representations should be taken into consideration. He then asked 
‘Other Persons’ who were in attendance to confirm if their objections still remained 
with the application in its current form.

Councillor Brown, representing the City of Durham Parish Council confirmed that 
after speaking to the Applicants Agent who confirmed that all deliveries had been 
removed from the application the Parish withdrew their objection to the application.

Councillor Dixon, Chairman of Sacriston Parish Council indicated that the parish still 
opposed the application. He then stated that Sacriston has had major problems 
associated with public nuisance, youth crime and drink/drugs and even a murder 
that have all been documented with themselves and other agencies.

They had 63 youth related anti-social incidents and 33 alcohol related incidents with 
August being a peak month. In November, a multi-agency task force had been put 
into place for 6 months that is still in force. He was aware that people were being 
bussed into the village, as it was so easy to obtain alcohol. This was having a 
negative effect of the residents of Sacriston who wanted a quiet place to live. The 
parish council strongly oppose the application and there were currently four 
establishments in the village where alcohol could be obtained.

The Council’s Solicitor asked who was involved with the task force.

Page 4



Councillor Dixon responded that the task force consisted of the parish council, 
police, schools etc. as they were tackling the anti-social behaviour from both sides, 
they met once a month and had their first meeting in November last year. Their last 
meeting was held in January and they are looking at the problems and they are 
trying to get young people involved in projects in the village to take them away from 
alcohol related offences. They are also looking at the areas where the alcohol is 
consumed.

The Council’s Solicitor referred to the proposal to close ‘Bargain Booze’ if this 
application was successful and asked Sacriston Parish Council if they still objected 
to the application.

Councillor Dixon confirmed that the parish still opposed the application.

Councillor Darkes asked if Sacriston Parish Council were part of PACT and 
PubWatch.

Councillor Dixon responded that they were part of PACT but not PubWatch.

Councillor Darkes asked if they had a problem with retailers. Councillor Dixon 
confirmed that they were currently working with the police looking at one retailer.

Councillor Darkes urged Sacriston Parish Council to be part of PubWatch.

Mr Robson, the Applicant’s Agent stated that he had come into the application late. 
He clarified that the 24 hour delivery service was withdrawn from the application 
and that the shop was small with daily off sales with no deliveries.

Mr Robson stated that he was conversant with the area from his time as a police 
officer. He then referred to Thwaites Case and that there was no real evidence 
presented and no notice or privy of real evidence to give feedback.

There were four other premises in the area but if the application was granted today 
it was the applicant’s intention to close the ‘Bargain Booze’ premises next door, 
which was a larger licensed premises which he intended to convert into a gym, 
which would be open until 11.00 pm. They had circulated the certificate to confirm 
planning permission had been granted, they had also provided a signed declaration 
from Mr Mohammed to confirm his intention to surrender the licence for ‘Bargain 
Booze’, if his application today was successful, so there would be no increase in the 
number of licensed premises. 

He then referred to people being able to get alcohol delivered from supermarkets 
and his client would take part in any shop watch scheme.

He referred to the concerns of alcohol sales to under 18’s and commented that he 
was proud in developing a strong good viable training system which would be 
delivered to staff on Friday. The training covered acts of terrorism, drunkenness, 
fire safety policy, immigration awareness policy, social media policy and 
vulnerability policy. Durham has students who are vulnerable, he would also deal 

Page 5



with weapons and how to deal with substances like the one identified in Chester-le-
Street. The training would be in depth and they would be required to pass an exam.

He would deliver level 2 training on underage sales and would go through this in 
depth with employees and his client. He referred to the numerous fake 
identifications and he would learn staff what to look for and what questions to ask 
and how to enter the incidents into the register.

His client intended to have a safe premises, which would prevent any undermining 
of the licensing objectives and he would deliver refresher training every 6 months. 
He indicated that Durham Constabulary had withdrew their objection and advised 
Members that he would also look at age related products as part of the training and 
what was classed as drunkiness and he gave the definition for drunkiness.

He felt for the residents of Sacriston, but indicated that the application should be 
granted as the square footage for alcohol would be reduced and staff would be well 
trained. They would link into PubWatch and work with the police as well as having a 
full CCTV equipment in operation with face recognition. Non-alcoholic drinks would 
also be offered in the premises and he felt that they had gone over and above with 
a training package to operate in a safe and socially manner.

The Chairman sought clarification if the licence for the gym was in the applicant’s 
name.

Mr Mohammed responded that it was not currently trading, so no licence was in 
place.

Councillor Brown indicated that deliveries from supermarkets were different to dial a 
drink as they weren’t delivered within hours.

Mr Robson indicated that supermarkets were the same where you get drinks 
delivered.

At 2.05 pm the Sub-Committee retired to deliberate the application in private. After 
re-convening at 2.15 pm the Chair delivered the Sub-Committee’s decision. In 
reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had taken into account the report of the 
Senior Licensing Officer, verbal and written representations of the Applicant and 
‘Other Persons’. Members had also taken into account the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy and Section 182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

Resolved: That the application for a premises licence be granted subject to a 
number of conditions as follows:

Licensable Activity Days and Hours
Sale by Retail of 
Alcohol (Consumption 
off the premises)

Monday to Sunday: 08:00 hrs to 23:00 hrs

Public Opening Hours Monday to Sunday: 08:00 hrs to 23:00 hrs

Page 6



General Conditions

a) Staff will be fully trained on the four licensing objectives and their 
responsibilities. All staff will be aware of all of our working policies and 
procedures and trained on how to implement them. Records of staff training 
will be available to the authorities. Staff training will be undertaken prior to 
commencement of work and every 6 months. 

b) Authorised staff, employed by Durham Police, shall have free access to all 
parts of the licensed premises, at all reasonable times, for the purpose of 
inspection to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of the 
premises licence and to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

c) CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of 
providing pictures of evidential quality. Cameras shall encompass the inside 
and outside of all entrances and exits to the premises, fire exits and all areas 
where the sale/supply of alcohol occurs. 

d) Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and 
date stamped and kept for a period of 28 days.

e) The Premise Licence Holder must ensure at all times that the DPS or 
appointed member of staff is capable and competent at viewing the CCTV 
and downloading the footage onto a disc, hard drive or memory stick when 
requested to do so by the police/local authority.

f) The recording equipment and discs/memory sticks shall be kept in a secure 
environment under the control of the DPS or other responsible named 
individual. 

g) No serving of alcohol to any person who appears to be drunk. 

h) Full initial staff training to be carried out by DPS to ensure no alcohol is sold 
to anyone under age and refresher training to be carried out every six 
months.

i) Training records to be kept for every member of staff and endorsed after 
every training session. The records will be made available to officers and 
responsible authorities when requested to do so.

j) The majority of staff will be trained to operate the CCTV system; this is to 
include viewing and downloading of the system. Regular refresher training 
will also be undertaken. Training records can be made available for 
inspection upon reasonable request by police or other relevant officers of a 
responsible authority.

Page 7



Public Safety

k) Fire exits and fire equipment will be clearly marked.

l) All staff will be aware of their requirements regarding health and safety.

m) An incident log will be in operation and maintained.  

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

n) Customers will be requested to move away from the premises once 
purchases have been made; anyone remaining in the area outside of the 
premises will be moved on.

o) The area outside of the premises will be kept free from litter with a litter bin 
being provided.

p) Groups of people will be discouraged from congregating outside the 
premises.

The Protection of Children from Harm

q) Challenge 25 will be in operation at all times; appropriate signage will be 
displayed to this effect.

r) A refusal register will be kept and endorsed after every sale refused; this will 
include (proxy sales); this will be maintained and available to authorities 
when requested.

s) All customers must be over the age of 18 to purchase alcohol. 

t) “Challenge 25” policy is in place in accordance with the Age Verification 
Policy, whereby an accepted form of photographic identification shall be 
requested before any alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under 
25 years of age.

u) A Challenge 25 policy will be operated at the premises. Acceptable forms of 
identification are a passport, photocard driving licence and PASS accredited 
identification card i.e. ID4U.

v) An incident book will be kept and endorsed after every sale refused. This 
should be maintained and will be produced to a relevant officer of the police 
or other relevant officer of a responsible authority upon request. This is also 
to include over 18s purchasing alcohol and passing it on to under 18s (proxy 
sale).

Page 8



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee held in Council Chamber - County 
Hall, Durham on Tuesday 19 March 2019 at 10.00 am

Present:

Councillor C Carr (Chairman)

Members of the Committee:
Councillors P Atkinson, J Blakey and M Wilson

Also Present:
Councillor J Blakey
C Hazell (Council’s Solicitor)
K Robson (Senior Licensing Officer)

Pickled Parson
J Taylor (Applicant’s Agent)
M Jolly (Licensee)
K Anderson (Employee)
Cllr G Willis (Sedgefield Town Council)
M Carr (Other Person)

MRH Stonebridge Service Station
R Botkai (Applicant’s Agent)
P Deevy (Area Manager)
Councillor D Clegg (Brandon & Byshottles Parish Council)

1 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J Maitland.

2 Substitute Members 

There were no substitute members in attendance.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 9



4 Minutes 

The minutes of the meetings held on 13 November 2018, 22 January 2019 and 5 
February 2019 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

5 Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - The Pickled Parson, 1-2 
The Square, Sedgefield 

Members: Councillor C Carr (Chairman), P Atkinson and M Wilson

Councillor Carr confirmed that he was no relation to Mr Carr who had made 
representations.

The Committee considered the report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services regarding an application for the variation of a premises licence 
for The Pickled Parson, 1-2 The Square, Sedgefield (for copy of report, see file of 
minutes).

A copy of the application and supporting documents had been circulated to 
Members together with copies of the representations received and responses from 
responsible authorities.

The Senior Licensing Officer presented the report and advised Members that the 
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee had determined a variation application of the 7 
September 2018 where Members stipulated conditions to be attached to the licence 
one of those conditions was in relation to the removal of the benches outside the 
premises. The applicant submitted a minor variation application to remove this 
condition on 13 November 2018 which was refused by the Licensing Department 
following comments in opposition to the proposal. A full variation application was 
submitted on 24 January 2019 to remove the condition in relation to the benches 
outside the premises.

Durham Constabulary, County Durham & Darlington Fire Rescue Service, Durham 
County Council’s Public Health Department, Durham County Council’s 
Environmental Health Department and Durham County Council’s Planning 
Department responded to the consultation with no comments.

Three letters of representation had been received, two in opposition, namely 
Sedgefield Town Council and Mr Carr and one from Councillor Makepeace who 
stated he had no objection to the application.

Mr Carr, an other person was invited to address the Sub-Committee. He referred to 
his letter of objection which he wished to expand on. He indicated that The Pickled 
Parson was in the centre of the village green in an elevated position with residential 
properties surrounding as shown on the circulated plans. Due to the location of the 
premises noise echoed, late in the evening. There were currently six benches 
located outside the premises and there was room for additional benches which 
were not contained or fenced off making it impossible to control when the premises 
were closed. Members of the public could congregate on the benches making noise 
which impacted on people sleeping in the vicinity. He then referred to the previous 

Page 10



hearing where the applicant agreed to remove the benches at closing time. Other 
premises that had benches located outside that caused a nuisance once removed 
the problems were solved. Since the premises licence was approved there had not 
been the weather to sit outside but as the weather was improving people would sit 
outside the premises.

Councillor Wills speaking on behalf of Sedgefield Town Council stated that Pickled 
Parson was in a prominent position on the village green and referred to the location 
plan where it was clear that the square stands on its own giving it a position where 
noise travels. The Pickled Parson was also located within a small short walk from 
other drinking establishments and there were 12 points of sale of alcohol in the 
area. Six and a half months ago the Sub-Committee agreed taking into 
consideration the licensing objectives and the concern of local residents to place a 
condition on the licence to remove the benches into safe storage after opening 
hours which was a reasonable condition to prevent public nuisance. She then 
referred to the Town Council’s written representation and reference to Durham 
County Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, in particular section 9.3 that refers 
to external structures and the applicant was expected to offer measures and the 
Council would normally expect them to be removed before the premises close and 
the Town Council had been subject to public nuisance over numerous years. The 
temptation for people to sit at benches unsupervised was most concerning as there 
was no supervision when the premises were closed. The Town Council were 
unsure of the management situation as there was no flat, so they were not assured 
that someone would be available to deal with any issues. The Licensing Sub-
Committee agreed that this was a reasonable condition and was the suggestion of 
the Applicant, the opening hours were not affected by this condition, they had 
reasonable opening hours and only off sales ceased at 10.00 pm. Other businesses 
had café licences to their frontage on the highway, but this application was on a 
village green and this condition was a reasonable compromise to minimise the 
impact on local residents and for the prevention of crime and disorder. 

She had looked at the Daniel Thwaites case and the decision to impose restrictions 
which was based on speculation rather than evidence which was not the case with 
this condition. The benches being large and cumbersome was not a matter for this 
sub-committee as small manageable benches could be purchased. As the condition 
had only being imposed for a short time over the winter months they did not know if 
the benches would create anti-social behaviour, but they thought it would over the 
summer months. Residents were concerned of the effects of noise internally and 
externally from off sales which would encourage drinking outside. The suggestion 
that the condition was imposed due to the confusion with another premises was 
highly unlikely, and they would ask that the application to remove the condition be 
refused.

Mr Taylor, the Applicant’s agent indicated that it was a simple decision to be made. 
A considerable amount of money had been invested into the property and the type 
of clientele would not participate in anti-social behaviour. They offered food and had 
nine letting rooms which was important revenue for the business which had high 
occupancy rates. The manager lived above the premises and the last thing the 
business would want was people outside of the premises which would have a 
detrimental impact on residents of the public house and the manager. 

Page 11



He then indicated that the ground was uneven, and they were unable to purchase 
fold away furniture as the ground was not sturdy enough for them to be in situ. 
There had been no reports of anti-social behaviour and they had no storage 
facilities for the benches. The outside seating was important for the business to 
flourish and at no point had there been any issues at the benches, they had agreed 
to reduce the times for off sales and signage had been erected to ask patrons to 
respect neighbours. He stated that no anti-social behaviour had taken place, he 
was mindful of the licensing objectives, but the benches had no adverse effects.

Mr Jolly, the Licensee referred to the reference made to the adjoining properties 
and advised that they had put in sound proofing in the residents housing. He then 
referred to the Impeccable Pig which they also owned and had recently undergone 
a two million refurbishment which was within 100 metres of the Pickled Parson. 
There were eight venues in the area that all did what they did which was serve food 
and anti-social behaviour had nothing to do with their patrons. 

The gathering of youths happened at the bus stop, he regularly talked to PC Lamb 
at the pub watch meetings who was on top of the anti-social behaviour. He stayed 
on site 90% of the time and he slept with a window open which was single glazing 
so he could hear any conversations, so any issues would be dealt with. The 
benches had been in place over the entire summer and there had been no 
complaints of anti-social behaviour. The town was populating, and their venue had 
a good name and was a go to venue. Hardwick Hall Hotel was currently undergoing 
a refurbishment and the ethos of the environment was a happy place and the 
benches were not causing any issues.

The Chairman asked why they had made an offer to remove the benches and why 
should the sub-committee remove this condition.

Mr Taylor responded that the last meeting was lengthy, and reference had been 
made to speaking to neighbours who may want a condition to remove the benches, 
but they did not offer this as a condition. He was surprised to learn that it was a 
condition and had submitted an application for a minor variation to remove this 
condition.

The Chairman indicated that this condition tendered to be standard where there 
were outside benches. He knew the area well and there are occasions where 
people would use the benches when the venue was closed which would cause 
problems in the area. He had spoken to the Police who did not know why you were 
asking for the condition to be removed. He indicated that it was their decision to buy 
heavy tables and asked why they could not replace the benches with ones that 
could be taken away.

Mr Taylor responded that the surface was uneven, and the benches had been cut 
to fit into the space. There was a Health and Safety risk if the benches were not 
stable, there was no storage to bring the benches inside the property and foldable 
benches would not be stable and safe.

The Chairman asked why it was essential to have tables outside.

Page 12



Mr Taylor indicated that the outside area was essential to any licencing particularly 
if the weather was good. No outside area would have a detrimental impact on the 
business and they did not want to upset any patrons in their letting rooms as it was 
a good source of revenue and more and more premises were trying to utilise the 
outside space.

Councillor Atkinson appreciated what they were saying that the benches were 
heavy and that they had spent a lot of money on the premises. He asked why they 
could not purchase lighter outside furniture as they could do some work to the front 
of the premises to make the ground stable.

Councillor Blakey indicated that she knew the area well and the Police were fully on 
board to ensure that anti-social behaviour would not happen again this summer and 
asked if they had CCTV in the outside area.

Mr Jolly indicated that they currently had CCTV at the doorway where you could 
see out the front of the premises, but they could install CCTV where the benches 
were located.

Councillor Blakey indicated that she sat on the panel when the application was 
considered, and the condition was imposed as a compromise for the benches. She 
asked what action they would take if there was ant-social behaviour at the benches.

Mr Jolly responded that he would initially deal with the incident himself and call in 
services if required.

Councillor Blakey asked if they would consider removing the benches at any time 
due to anti-social behaviour.

Mr Jolly responded they would never let it get to that point.

Mr Taylor indicated that their business procedures were regularly reviewed and 
were about managing scenarios to prevent issues arising. The question was difficult 
to answer as no incidents had occurred, but Mr Jolly worked closely with the police.

The Chairman asked if they had considered the condition being removed so that no 
benches were allowed.

Mr Jolly responded that they had considered every aspect.

Clarification was sought on the number of benches and the time of usage. Members 
were advised that there were six benches that were in use until the premises closed 
at 11.00 pm.

Councillor Wills raised concerns that there was no supervision when the premises 
closed and if the benches stayed in situ then anyone could use them, even people 
from other venues. The manager does not live on site but stays 90% of the time so 
how can supervision be constant. There was no evidence to show that the ground 

Page 13



of the outside area was uneven, and the village green was the responsibility of the 
Town Council and was maintained.

The Chairman indicated that the benches could be used by anyone which was a 
concern and was why he had asked if they had considered not having any 
benches. The condition to remove the benches was offered by the Applicant.

Mr Taylor referred to the previous hearing where the words used were that they 
may wish to consider taking benches in and consider talking to neighbours which 
was a misunderstanding possibly on his behalf.

The Chairman indicated that he had spoken to the Solicitor who was present at the 
last meeting who had indicated that the minutes were accurate, and the notice of 
decision was clear. The Chairman at the last hearing also checked the notice of 
decision before signing to ensure accuracy.

Mr Carr indicated that a lot of money had been spent on the building, but other 
venues also have a lot of money spent on them but don’t have benches outside. He 
was not personally objecting to the benches, but they should be removed on an 
evening and no other benches were outside of premises.

The Chairman invited all parties to sum up.

Mr Jolly indicated that he only stayed on site 90% of the time but they did always 
have a night manager on site.

At 10.50 am the Sub-Committee Resolved to retire to deliberate the application in 
private.

After re-convening at 10.55 am the Chairman delivered the Sub-Committee’s 
decision. In reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had taken into account the 
report of the Senior Licensing Officer, the written and verbal representation of Other 
Persons and written representations from responsible authorities. Members had 
also taken into account the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Section 
182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

Resolved: That the application to vary the premises licence be refused.

6 Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence - MRH Stonebridge, 
Stonebridge Service Station, Durham 

Members: Councillor C Carr (Chairman), P Atkinson and M Wilson

The Committee considered the report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services regarding an application for the variation in respect of MRH 
Stonebridge, Stonebridge Service Station (for copy of report, see file of minutes).

A copy of the application and location plan had been circulated together with copies 
of the representation received and responses from responsible authorities.

Page 14



The Senior Licensing Officer presented the report and advised Members that the 
variation was to include the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises 24-
hours daily and to include two conditions and to make alterations to the premises. 

Durham County Council’s Local Safeguarding Children Board, Durham County 
Council’s Environmental Health Department, County Durham and Darlington Fire 
and Rescue Service responded to the consultation with no comments.

Durham Constabulary had entered into mediation and the Applicant had agreed the 
additional conditions, details of which had been circulated.

One representation had been received from Brandon & Byshottles Parish Council in 
opposition to the application.

Councillor Clegg speaking on behalf of Brandon & Byshottles Parish Council 
indicated that the parish council had decided to submit an objection due to public 
safety as the premises were located on a busy road on the A690. The side that the 
premises was located had not footpath and the only other outlet near the premises 
was Tesco and Sainsbury’s. The location of the premises invited people to cross a 
busy stretch of the road which was a hazard, there was also a bus lane with 
vehicles entering and exiting and moving around the forecourt. With regard to the 
prevention of public nuisance the premises would attract people from surrounding 
areas when other stores were closed. New houses were located on the A690 and 
there were properties in both directions, so the continuous movement of people 
would be disruptive for people in the area. He then referred to the prevention of 
crime and disorder and that the forecourt would attract people during the day and 
night in the surrounding area and they would ask that the application be refused.

The Chairman asked if the parish had had sight of the mediation document.

Councillor Clegg confirmed that the parish council had seen the mediation 
document and their objection remained.

Mr Botaki the Applicant’s Agent indicated that the petrol station already had a 
premises licence to sell late night refreshments and they were looking to vary the 
licence to allow the sale of alcohol. Malhurst had recently merged with Motor Fuel 
Group who currently had 502 24-hours a day licensed petrol stations in England 
and Wales so what the Applicant was asking for was not unusual and the company 
had lots of experience running these types of premises. He had spoken to Durham 
Constabulary and mediated some conditions including a night pay window from 
23:00 to 06:00 which was how almost all of their stores operated and the 
preference of the police. The Application had been served on all responsible 
authorities and no objections had been received from any responsible authorities or 
residents.

The premises were situated with a field at either side and across the road was a 
high fence that divided the housing estate. He was currently dealing with 160 
application and most are agreed with a few been heard by a panel which tended to 
be those premises located in the middle of houses. The application had been 

Page 15



advertised in the usual way and none of the residents had objected. The policy 
allowed shops to match trading hours with opening hours.

He referred to the concerns from the parish council and their safety concerns, but 
he had never come across any safety issues and his company also represented 
Rontec who had 300 sites all of which have a 24-hour licences and no traffic related 
issues had been brought to his attention and Durham Constabulary had not raised 
any issues. 

With regard to public nuisance he did not believe the sale of alcohol would disrupt 
residents as the premises were already open 24-hours, so they did not anticipate 
any issues. They had no issues with litter as most customers drove to the site and 
they don’t have many walking customers due to the geography of the site, so they 
did not expect any issues with litter and they were not aware of any crime and 
disorder at the site.

He had asked the store if they had any current issues and there were no complaints 
from residents or any contact with responsible authorities. The premises were in a 
quiet location and the company were aware of their responsibilities and were happy 
to provide contact details and any issues they would take the necessary steps to 
address. The act allowed for the application to be reviewed but they would ask if 
there were any issues if they could please speak to them first to give them the 
opportunity to address any issues.

He then referred to the Daniel Thwaites case and there was no evidence in the 
papers that the store would cause any issues just the fear of what might happen.

Councillor Wilson asked the age of staff who would be working at the store and the 
expected trade.

Mr Botkai responded that the company did not employ anyone under the age of 18 
and he did not have any figures on the expected trade.

Councillor Blakey sought clarification if the CCTV covered the whole site and 
commented that there was a fear of people leaving Durham on an evening calling 
into the garage to obtain alcohol which would cause a disturbance.

Mr Botkai responded that there was no evidence to suggest that this would happen, 
it wasn’t currently happening as the premises had a late-night refreshments licence. 
The premises were not going to be a meeting point or hub and they don’t expect a 
quite area to suddenly become noisy but if anything did happen they could be 
contacted. He then advised that the CCTV equipment was of good quality in colour 
that also covered the forecourt and serving hatch and indicated that Members were 
more than welcome to come and look at the CCTV equipment.

Councillor Wilson sought clarification on the number of staff on site.

Mr Botkai responded that they had two members of staff during the day and one on 
an evening.

Page 16



Members discussed the refusal register and how they also liked to see and incident 
log.

Councillor Clegg indicated that the Applicant had referred to real evidence and 
asked if they could give a description if it was safe for pedestrians to access to 
purchase alcohol.

In response to the question, the Applicant advised that the route was safe, and 
pedestrians currently used the shop, although there was little foot trade due to the 
isolated location of the premises.

The Council’s Solicitor referred to Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 and 
whether any consideration had been given to excluded premises.

Mr Botkai responded that under the previous licensing act you had to prove the 
use of the premises to obtain a licence and provide primary use data. He referred to 
the new act and the rewording of Section 176 and that the decision on primary use 
followed the grant of the licence and was not part of the application process.

The Chairman indicated that records needed to be kept on the types of sales to 
show the percentage of alcohol sold which would be checked after 12 months.

Mr Botkai responded that this was not appropriate to impose as a condition as it 
was only used to trigger the question of primary use. The data could be requested 
at any time.

The Chairman invited all parties to sum up.

Councillor Clegg reiterated what he had said previously regarding the prevention of 
public nuisance, crime and disorder and public safety. There was not a safe 
pedestrian access into the petrol station, there was a public house down the road 
and a bus lane and two roads to cross to access the petrol station. The Parish was 
concerned which was based on fact and they could not see any benefit of having 
alcohol sales and he hoped that this was taking into consideration.

Mr Botkai indicated that there was no evidence of any danger on the site and no 
responsible authorities had raised any issues. The premises were already trading 
24-hours a day and suggested that there was no evidence that anyone would be in 
danger. He asked that the licence be granted based on Section 18 of the Act as 
there was no evidence to substantiate concerns. Crime and disorder concerns had 
been addressed with mediation with the police and he asked that the licence be 
granted, they were aware of their responsibilities and were happy to exchange 
contact details.

The Chairman asked if there were designated markings around the forecourt so 
that customers were safe to walk.

Mr Deevy, the Area Manager responded that they did not have designated 
markings as there was very little foot trade.

Page 17



At 11.35 am the Sub-Committee Resolved to retire to deliberate the application in 
private.

After re-convening at 11.45 am the Chairman delivered the Sub-Committee’s 
decision. In reaching their decision the Sub-Committee had taken into account the 
report of the Senior Licensing Officer, the written and verbal representation of Other 
Persons and written representations from responsible authorities. Members had 
also taken into account the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and Section 
182 Guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

The Chairman had indicated that the Sub-Committee had agreed to add a condition 
that a description of the person be included in the incident book. Following 
discussions with the Applicant it was agreed not to include this condition.

Resolved: That the Application to vary the Premises Licence be granted as follows 
with the conditions outlined in the application and that had been agreed with 
Durham Constabulary:

Licensable Activities Days and Hours
Late Night Refreshment (indoor and 
outdoors)

Monday to Sunday 23:00 hours until 
05:00 hours

Supply of Alcohol (off sales only) Monday to Sunday 00:00 hours until 
24:00 hours

Opening Hours Monday to Sunday 00:00 hours until 
24:00 hours

The following further condition be imposed to promote the crime and disorder 
objective:

 A CCTV camera shall be positioned so as to cover customers purchasing 
alcohol at the point of sale in the premises and at the night pay window.

Page 18



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45

Agenda Item 7



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115

Agenda Item 8



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meetings held on 6 February 2019 and 19 March 2019
	Minutes , 19/03/2019 Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

	6 Consideration of the Ongoing Suitability to Continue to Hold a Personal Licence
	7 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence - 88 Front Street, Chester-le-Street
	8 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence - Khan's Foodstore, 25-27 West Road, Annfield Plain, Stanley

